To:  Board Members

From: Superintendent George Mendoza

Re:  July 14th & 15th Board/Superintendent Leadership Retreat
Dixie Lund Boardroom EQU; Inlow Hall

Our first retreat is just around the corner and summer is in full swing, | know this is a busy time
for many of you and your families; | certainly appreciate you all taking the time to meet with me
so that we may learn and collaborate on how we can best support and serve La Grande School
District. To get us started | have attached the following documents for you to review prior to our

retreat in July.

I have attached the following documents for you to review prior to our Retreat In July.

1. Please Read/Review

Chapter 2- The Superintendent and School Board relationship, from the book, So
Now You're the Superintendent. This chapter provides insight into

Superintendent thinking and how we, as a Board/Superintendent leadership
team, may want to begin communicating and interacting to ensure a healthy and
transparent relationship.

Superintendent’s Transition Entry Plan & Goals. This is a bit ambitious and we
can agree to scale some things back; Be ready fo share thoughts/feedback.

2. Please complete:

Figure 2.2. We will discuss your individual thoughts and ideas in order to
develop a collective protocol surrounding the substantive topics.

The “True Colors” online personality questionnaire. We will have fun learning and
sharing our resuits,

3. Retreat agendas for July 14th and 15th.

By the conclusion of the Superintendent/Board Leadership Retreat, participants wilk:
e Take part in activities intended to support a high-functioning Board-Superintendent team
{True Colors®© — Barrier Breaking Activities) .
e Discuss and reflect:

@]

Upon work that was completed with George Murdock so that he can
share/facilitate discussion around what he feels we should alf understand and
support in relation to the needs of La Grande that were established by the
Superintendent search process.

On Superintendent’s Transition Entry Plan & Goals: Agree on priorities, focus and
expectations in order to develop performance targets and deliverables for year 1
evaluation schedule. Discuss District Strategic Plan for La Grande Schools



o Upon Characteristics of Effective School Board's; Develop and agree to a set of
operating norms related to superintendent-board interactions and relationships
based on a discussion activity surrounding the read-ahead.

Collaboration, Common understanding on expectations and focused outcomes is the
objective | am striving for. | look forward to spending time with you all and getting to
know you better; | also look forward to us developing as a team, serving the community
and striving to provide the best education possible to the students of La Grande.

Schedule of Activities:

Day 1: Friday, july 14
3:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

Day 2: Saturday, July 15
8:00a.m.-3:00 p.m.

3:30-4:30 -Welcome and review of
learning objectives and retreat schedule.
introduction activity (True Colors survey &
Barrier Breaking Reflection)

4:30- 5:30 p.m.- Discussion and
Reflection with George Murdock

5:30- 6:00-Dinner

6:00- 7:00 p.m.- Discussion and
Refiection with George Murdock (Cont.)

8:00-8:30 -Breakfast and Day 1 recap

8:30-9:30: Characteristics of Effective
School Boards activity and
discussion/What is my role on the
Board/How Do we operate

9:30-11:30 -Develop
Superintendent-Board operating norms
and agreements (chapter 2 read-ahead-
Review examples)

11:30-12:30 Lunch

12:30-2:00 Superintendent's Entry Plan
review and discuss focus; expectations,
evaluation process; performance targets
& deliverables for next year; Discuss
strategic plan concept

2:00-3:00 -Retreat review and next-step




T he Supermtmdem
S chool ekn‘wmth

aaml

A Cornerstone of Your Success

B séemed rather mcongmous fhzzf in a society of super-
sophisticated commumcatzon, we often suffer from a
shortage of listeners. -

o - -fErma Bombeck

E d, a seasoned supermtendent of fifteen years, reahzed that his -

: relationship with the board was going sour. It started with a negative
evaluation in May and as winter approached board members were attack-
-ing him in board meetings régarding “poor communication and not doing
<his homework.” The board claimed that without proper information it
., couldn’t make decisions that were in the best interest of the students, staff,
* dnd community. One board member in particular accused Ed:of “with-

; ;h01d1ng information in an effort to control the board. This board member

“went on to claim that Ed communicated with those who agreed with his
'_;':phllosoljhy and Wlthheld data from those who desired to hold. hnn
':r-accountable : ‘ .

31




S 32

So Now You’re the Superintendent!

Does this sound familiar? Unfortunately, superintendents can ofter .
become vietims of a poor relationship with their boards in the absence”
of purposeful planning. It sneaks up on them and before they know it, .
their job is on the line. As a new superintendent you will need to work:

- hard to develop and maintain a good relationship with your board merm- -

bers, which oftentimes is a function of effective superintendent-board ki
communication. : : .

ABOUT THIS CHAPTER
This chapter will focus on the relationship between you and your boa;rd.,_

ways to start off on the right foot, and strategies and ideas to continue to:
build on your relationship as your superintendency unfolds. As you read .

the information in this chapter, pay particular attention to the following:

*  The importance of “equal treatment” when working with board -
members’ - L : -

o The uniqueness of the superintendent-board chair/president.
- relationship S _ - 7 ' o

¢  The basics of developing an initial relationship with your board
members. ' ' S -

¢  Strategies for addressing normal and emergency communications *
with the board - C N

e  Board standards and operating protocols

Keep your individual needs in mind as you review this chapter as well.
Remember each district, board, and superintendent is different. Since yoitr
district and situation is unique, your success is based on the needs of your !
board and the strengths you possess as the school district leader. Carefully |
evaluate the strategies presented and select the ones that make the most .

sense for you and your situation.

MANAGING THE SUPERINTENDENT-

BOARD RELATIONSHIP L

Stratégies used to develop and sustain h‘ealfhy, long-lasting relationships
with school boards-are mianyfold. Most correlate to aspects of effective.

- communication and therefore this is where we will spend the bulk of our -

time. We believe that felationships are likely most significantly impacted; ..
positively or negatively, by the quality of the communication that takes |
place among the parties. In considering the nuarices of managing the




- The querintendent—Schadl Board Relationship

sﬁperhtenden#board reléﬁons}dp we have identified two areas that are
of vital importance: : - : o
' .e  Equal treatment of your board menibers -
‘e Superintendent~board president/chair inferaction

THE IMPORTANCE OF EQUAL TREATMENT
}Zqiial, tféétment of'boérd members is the first lesson new superintendents

nust learn. A good time to concentrate on this concept with your board is
it the very beginning of your superintendency. This fime is commonly

mown as the “horieymoon” period wheré everyone is happy and com-

nunication seems easy. Normally you are not being bombarded with com-
lex issues during this period and cah work on the relationship. Slowly, as
he year progresses, you may begin to establish relationships, receive
equests, make decisions, or run into issues that put you in a precarious
Osition with individual board members. As your tenure confinues, if you
re not purposeful in your approach, you may develop “allies” on the

oard as well as “detractors.” If you have not addressed these issues up .

ont during your “honeymoon” period, you could be headed for trouble.
' Since many new supetintendents worked as principals or central office
dministrators before assuming the superintendency, they have only
2ported to.one supervisor during most of their career. During the super-
itendent preparation process there was likely little, if any, training related
> how one deals with establishing an effective board relationship. All of a
1dden the new superintendent is serving a board that is charged with
:ting as one, but is really a group of individuals with different expecta-
ons, demands, and personalities. Individuals new to the superintendency
wst be aware of this job challenge and have a plan for establishing and
istaining an effective relationship with their board. - I
Board members themselves are often times not well prepared for this
art of their role either. Even though board members in most states receive
ime fraining, they likely did not spend much time on the superintendent-
»ard relationship or the impact of making individual demands. This may
» the first time sorne of these individuals have served on a board of direc-
1s, and they are often pulled in competing directions as a result of the
iblic involvement in education we talked about in Chapter 1. They may
't have strategies for dealing with these constituent demands arid want
i, as superintendent or your staff, to be conducting individual research
r them on a regular basis. The question is, how do you deal with these
uations when they arise? How do you provide appropriate service to

ur board without showing favoritism or serving one member’s needs. -

er that of another?

33




34

So Now You're thé‘ Superintendent!

In our Work with superintendents and through our own experience in
the position we have obsérved two significant ways in which equal treat-
ment of board members can become a problem for the new superinten-
dent. Although we will speak to each in greater depth below, the first
relates to supermtendents showing deference to particular individuals on

“the board, in essence developing an “inner circle.” The second condition

focuses on how the superintendent deals with individual board member

- requests for mformatlon and’ hme

The “Inner C1rcle”

In our observation supermtendents develop an “inner circle” of board E
members over time and typically without intention. These individual
board members may be people the superintendent holds in high regard, or -
who are seen as prominent in the community, Superintendents tend to-
often agree with these board members and: the board members tend to . .
fully support the superintendent’s initiatives. It is human nature to con-

" nect more frequently with those who we trust or feel | support our initia-

tives. If we don't feel support from a board member; or if there is clear
opposition, we, as human beings, will seek the refuge of those we perceive

to be on our side. This tendency is both natural and dangerous. New .
superintendents don't typically statt out mtendmg to fall into this trap, but -
subtly, over time, as individual relationships build, it can happen. It may -

be that the superintendent has a special connection to a board member - -

because of a common interest, or the board member may be highly com-
plimentary of the superintendent’s performance. Regardless, the condition

can develop and its impact is often negative and dramatic. Not unlike the . -

employee who observes favoritism taking place in their environmenf, °
board members will become aware of this state as well. Once this happens
the superintendent’s objectivity is compromised and his or her decisions
are questioned. Board members on the outside of the “inner circle” will =
consider the superintendent’s motive when decisions are made or initia- .

tives are supported. Again, as subtle and unintentional as this condition "

may feel to the superintendent, it is deadly to his or her relatlonshlp with
the remamder of the board.

Addressmg Ind1v1duaI Board Member Requests

Sehool board members have backgrounds that are typ1ca11y as diverse
as the constituents they serve. Some will be retired community membeis
who have time to thoroughly consume each boaid packet and communica- - .
tiofl from the district, whilé others will be individuals who oftentimes .
arrive at the board meeting late havmg just arrived home from a businéss -
trip. What this diversity means for you as superintendent is that some - .
board members may be heavily involved in their work, calling youona .’
daily basis, while others will only contact you in case of emergency. The -




The Superiﬁtendent~5qhool Board Relationship

1mportant part to understand is tha’c you will receive. mdnndual board
member requests for mformahon or time, but how you address those

requests is pivotal to your success in maintaining a solid relationship with

your entire board. What we have observed to be most effective in address-
ing this issue is to let your board know up front when you receive individ-
ual requests for information or time so that those requests and any accom-
panying data will be distributed to all. This has a threefold effect: (1) it

curbs ihdividual requests which board members might make without the -

knowledge of their colleagues; (2) it es’cabhshes “equal treatment” of all
board members and (3). it has the impact of reducing urimanageable
requests which nught take extensive time and effort by you or your staff.

: Armed with knowledge of these potential pitfalls as a new superinten-.

den’c you can properly establish norms with your board early on. We
spoke to addressing these issues- durmg your “honeymoon period” and
frankly, the earlier the better. Our experience is that these behaviors, espe-
sially individual board requests, will begin early on in your tenure and the
sooner you develop a protocol for their resolution the sooner you can
Jegm to-establish a healthy superintendent-board relationship. .

ah:ategxes to ensure equal treeiment of all board members mciude the
Oﬂowmg . . o

e Monitor the attennon and tlme you prov1de to your ‘board
; ‘members..
‘e Be overt about your goal to provide equai attention to board
members; set a goal with your members and periodically revisit
- the goal to see how you are doing.
. .e - Gather the perceptions of your board members through inter-

- views and surveys to see if you are providing equal atten’aon and

. communication to them.
® . Ask your board pre51dent to talk Wlﬂ'l board members and gain
their perceptions about the time you are spending with them;

meet with your board president and talk about what he orsheis

o learning as a result of these discussions.
- ®  Remind board members about your feeling on the mportance of

~equal treatment; ask them to provide your with feedback about -

your éfforts and the strategies you have implemented.

35




36

So Now Yow’re the Superintendent!

Putting one or more of these strategies in place will help ensure you
are treating all your board members in a similar manner. In the initial
stages of your superintendency, you may find that a good way to enisure
equal treatment is fo communicate with each board membeér using the
same methods. After you have become more established, you may find
that doing the same thing for each member &y not be to your benefit.
Let’s look at another side of equal treatment.

WHEN IS EQUAL TREATMENT UNEQUALP

You will find that providing equal time and attention to each board mem-

- ber will work in the short term, but as your relationship evolves you'Hl see

each board member has slightly different needs, and you'll want to con~
sider their specific needs as you continue to work with them. While this
may be challenging, your treatment should equalliy meet the needs of alt
your board members. Let’s see how Juanita started to meet the needs of_
her board members in the area of comumunication:

Juanita started her superintendéncy by working hard to make sure -
she provided each board member with eqital time and equal infor-
mation. As her relationship with them grew, she started to see that
they had different levels of need. She met with each board member
individually to find out what their needs were, and then began to
change her strategies to better meet those needs.
Initially, she was calling her board chair on a daily ba51s andthe
other members on a weekly basis. Antoriio, one of her board mem-

" bers, told her that she did not need to call as he could obtain his .
information from the Friday Update and the board packet. Jennifer,
another board member, told Iuamta that she too preferred not to- -
recewe a call. e

Juanita normally dehvered the Weekly board mformatlonal_

- packet personally to each member. Some of the board members
wanted their packet delivered to their place of employment, while -
others preferred to have it delivered to their home. Juanita nor-
mally delivered the packet on Thursday afternoons. One board
member explained to Juanita that he was normaﬂy out of town ot - .
Thursdays, so she could mail the packet to him since he Wouldn’ o
be able to review it until the weekend.

As Juanitd made these changes she kept in contact with the
members to make sure her efforts wére working for them. In the

" end she met board members’ needs but she did not do everything "
exactly the same for each board member. By meeting their needs -
and constantly monitoring her efforts, she was able to get hlgh
marks for her communication efforts with her board. s




The Superintendent-School Board Relationship

Keep 7 mind that Juanita’s success was based on her ability ’co fmd out
her board members’ needs, and then design strategies to meet those needs.
She also assessed her situation to make sure her ideas would work. Meet-
ing sndividual needs can be a complex task, but well worth the effort. Ideas
to gmde you as you Work to meet your board members needs include:

- ® When Workmg to meet board member needs in the areas of atten-
" tion and communication, remember that you want to make sure

.. each member feels equally important and informed.

s Before thinking about varying your techniques for board mem-

- "bers, be sure you have estabhshed a good basa ‘of attention and‘

e information. -
. e .+ Talk with your board members contmuously to make sure yow:
.. efforts are working for each and every one of them. L
~."@  Tfyoubegin to percéive that a member is feeling less important or
" less informed, find out the issue and make the necessary
Aad;ustmen’cs : . . N

int # 2z Corisider. the unlque needs of mdmdual board: members

SUPERINTEND ENT——B OARD
CHAIR/ PRESIDENT INTERACTION

In most d1str1cts, 1f itis not recogruzed as policy, it is definitely part of the _

culture for the board chair/president to assume an elevated role from the
other bodard members. Aftér all, the chair or president of the board is seen
as a leadership role within the board structure. This role may be clearly
defined or more informal. One item that seems to be consistent across dis-
tricts is that the superintendent is required to meet with the board chair/
president regarding development of the board meeting agenda Addition-
ally, superintendents will, in most cases, informally communicate with the
board chair/ pre31dent regarding other topics of importance. Although, as
mentioned in the previous section, it is important to communicate equally

with all board members, by nature of the position you will communicate

more frequently with the board chair /president. As such it is important to
develop a separate set of communication standards for your interactions

Wlth this person. -
- The ‘board chau/preszdent may serve as a soundmg board to the

superm’cendent for district initiatives, or provzde the supermtendent with .

37




38

~ the superintendent and the board chair/president. What powers are dele-

{0 the entire board and what is communicated md1v1dua11y to the chair/

on track. -

* chair/president may come from the board chair/president or other board.;

So Now You’re the-Superintendent!

guidance regarding communication with other board members It is
important to get clarity regarding the role of the chair/president duzing
your initial meetings (or retreat) with the board. For your protection it
should also be clear how the entire board “views” the relationship between

gated to the chair/president by the board? What should be communicated:

president? .
From our experiences, some new supenntendents do not clarify thls'

relationship and then fall victim to mismatched expectations. The most
common problems involve other board members not believing in the lead-
ership abilities of the chair/ pres1dent and wanting to be more involved in |-
the leadership of the board. Their issues with the board chair/president’.
put the superintendent in the middle of a power struggle. The superinten- -
dent needs to help the board work through this kind of issue as their -
mediator, or utilize the services of an outside facilitator. -
Another common problem we have seen is that one or more board:
members wants to “micro-manage” the operations of the district. These -
board members want all of the attention and informational details .
normally reserved for the- supermtendentwchalr /president relationship.
This is another situation fhat reqmres intervention to get meribers back

Establishing‘Supef.ilntende.nt—BOard
Chair/President Interaction Norms

The' initial expectahons for your mteractmn patterns with the bo

members as well. You need to take the initial ideas and make sure all of th
board membets are involved in the final product. Conducting an ope!
discussion with the entire board regarding the president’s role and your
relationship with him or her is a must. Most superintendenis hold thi
discussion as part of the formal, open agenda. This provides a. formal:>
record of the chscussmn and ensures dear understandmg of the expecta 3
tions for everyone. '

It is important to also remember that, especially for a newly electe
board chair/president, they may riot realize the importance of clarlfym
their role in relation to other board members. One of the greatest areas )



The Superintendent—'Scho ol Board Rela_tion'ship

nsion  between board members comes in_the form of a mistrust that
gins with individual members feeling they are not included in the com-
pnication loop It is incumbent upon you as a new superintendent to
ake sure this issue is addressed once a new board chair/president is
acted. The same role clarification is crucial for boards that either may not
wve had the discussion in the past or for a board that may be dysfunc-
mal in their formal operations.

Strategies for helping your board understand the mportance of role _

wrification mclude the foﬂowmg

.o Use the consultant from the search firm that a5515teci in your
‘ placement to conduct a seminar with your board.
e -Provide informational articles highlighting the 1mportanc:e of the
" clarification of the board chair/president role in relatton to the
. board and supermtenden’c
.o - Meet informally with the board cha1r/presxdent and board
meinbers to help them understand the 1mportance of role
clarification.

. e - Usea consultant from the state school board association fo explain
... the importance of clarifying the board chair/ pre51dent s relation-

ship with the board and the superintendent.
e Use a member from another board that has crechbzh’cy Wlth your
' board to explam the importance of role.

=épiﬁg the Chair/President Relationship I.’r'oductive

~The supermtendent - board chair/president relationship is one that

mands considerable attention, time, and effort. In the following lists are -

oduictive strategies to both establish and maintain the :rela’aonship, as
a1l as potential pitfalls that should be avoided.

_Strategies for successful superintendeni—board chalr/ pres1dent mter—
hon mclude the foHowmg -

o Determine the frequency of corrumzmca’non desmed by the board
- chair/president.
"o Develop a. standazd. related to when the board chazr/preszdent
" . should be contacted regarding important situations/information.
"¢ Contact the board chair/ presuient in advance of developmg the
. board agenda.
e  Gain an understanding early of how the board views the role of
. the chalr/ president.
e Assist the board chair/ premdent in developmg and adoptmg
" tools for board self-evaluation. '
- Be willing to serve as a soundmg board for the board cha1r/

: premdent

39




40

So Now Youi’re the Superintendent!

¢  Provide the board chair/ pre51dent withideas related to the super~
. intendent evaluation process. _

o  Remember fo always introduce the board chair/ premdent when
jointly attending rneetmgs : :

' Pitfalls to avoid regardmg supermtendentuboard chan:/ pres1dent'
mteractlon mciude the followmg

® Forgethng to contact fhe board chair/ p‘tes:tdent first when serzous‘

issues arise. "

o - Usurping the board chair/ premden’c s authority when making
decisions, or dealing with the district’s various publics.

o Failing to place the board chair/president (and other board

' members) in a position of importance when announcing district-

successes. o

e  Handling calls from board members related to board member con-

flict; rather, always refer these issues to the board chair/president.

o Engaging in negative gossip with the board cha1r/ pre51dent

about other board members. "

¢ Taking action on an issué which the board chair/president pro-,_'

motes without the full mvolvement of the board.

The superintendent—board chai:/ president relationship is one of the
most vital you will establish during your tenure. Most seasoned superin-_
tendents indicate that they talk with their board chair/president ona daily:
basis, therefore establishing a successful relationship from the beginning is’
of clear importance. As stated earlier, it is also significant to understand’
how the board corporately views the role of the chair/president and his or
her interaction with the superintendent. Successful supermtendents deflne;f
these factors early with their boards, and thus enhance ongoing communi-

. cation and trust.

THE BASICS OF BOARD COMMUNICATION

Sound and effectlve communication between the supermtendent and th
board is the foundation of a good relationship. In the Beginning Superi

tendent Study (BSS) mentioned in Chapter 1 (Gordon, in Chapman, 199_




The Superintendent~School Board 'Relationship

1 mistake made by many. new superintendents was offending. school

»oard members and not doing homework between board meetings. The -
withors provided a list of “offending behaviors” and “board meeting

-]

omework problems.” They include

recommending personnel actions involvhg staff that had special,

- long-term relationships with board members; .
. being too. optimistic about potential program implementation or

not being completely honest about district problems;

not paying close enough attention to the meaning and implica-
- tions of board member voting patterns; board members who were

outvoted sometimes represented major community groups and
their wishes; ' - : ' '

failure to recognize the implications one negative vote and i;he
- lack of consensus had on a decision; the board member became

alienated;

failure of the superintendent to “equally inform” all board mem-
bers related to issues and decisions; 7 )
insufficient communication with board members between

‘meetings;

bringing new ideas forward in public board meéﬁngs without
eXtensiv_e discussion in advance with board members;
lack of clarity regarding the roles of the superintendent and board

chair/president, resulting in a poor relationship. (Gordon, in

Chapman, 1997, p. 200)

Although avoiding all of these problems sounds intuitive, the
devil is in the details regarding how the superintendent achieves °

a positive working relationship with his or her board. The bottom

line is that the quality of the superintendent-board relationship is

strongly correlated with the clarity and frequency of communica-
tion between the parties. Many of our colleagues report they
spend a significant portion of their time each week in commumica-
tion with their board members. Since the superintendency is a

-position that deals with an overwhelming number of people and

amount of information in a given day, it is crucial that a plan for
superintendent-board communication be developed as early as

| ‘possible in your tenure. How is this plan developed? Normally,

superintendents new to -a district talk with their board chair/
president and with individual board members in defining an
effective communication plan. We recommend four basic compo-

- nents of the communication plan, which will be outlined as the
" chapter proceeds. These four areas are as follows:

0. What form.of communication does each board member indi-

vidually prefer?

41




42

. So Now You’re the Superintendent!

o  Determine the forms of communication and frequency of
. .-contact you will use to keep the board informed. | '
0 Quiline the role of the board chair/ presnient in the commti-
nication process.
©  Establish standards that outlme when board members Wﬂl
be contacted regardmg emergency situations: :

Let's see how one supermtendent worked with her board to 1dent1fy
their informational needs and developed a commumcaﬁon plan: -

Mary knew her board would want to have mput into her commu-
nication plan. When she was hired, the board chair told the rest of
the members that he would take charge of her initial orientation
since she was starting in the summer and several board members
would be in and out of town during this time penod Mary took
advantage of the extended time her board chair was giving her and
talked with him about his communication needs. As he talked,
Mary took notes on.a white board in her office. She reviewed these
notes with her chair for dlarity. She developed a draft of her com-
munication plan for superintendent-board inferactions.

Once she completed this task, she called individual board E
members and invited them to meet with her to gain perspective
about their communication needs. She took notes and used these
thoughts to refine her commimication plan. She distributed her
plan one final time to obtain board member feedback, made adjust-
ments, and then brought the plan to the entire board for their even-
tual adoption. : ,

Sincé Mary spent time up front Workmg with her board to determme A
their needs, she has a clear understanding of their expectations regarding -
her communication with thern. However, Mary normally goes one step
further and communicates more thar the board expects. She ascribes to the - -
saying, “Underpromise and overdeliver.” This belief pays big dividends .

" for her with her board: On her yearly evaluaﬁon, she gets good ra’cmgs for : :

her abxhty to communicate.

i eer . ya -y qi"WIl! need:to PUE.
together a purposeful communlcation ;plan to bunld this relatlonshlp

Smce a high level 'of communication. between a new supermtendent o
and his or her board members is 5o crucial, and since many new superiiv
tendents are not accustomed to this high level of communication, we have -’

- provided a planning template in Figure 2.1. Use this template or adapt it

to fit your unique needs.




The Superintendent-School Board Relationship -

Eéure 2.1, Board .'Cdmmunication Analysis Template

1is tempiate has been designed to assist you as you -begin to dlagnose the gen- .

al communication needs of your board. Think about the board as a whole when
mpietmg this template. Use the results of board member interviews, discus-
shs With district staff, and a review of board minutes when answermg the ques-

ns below.

,How ar.:tn)e does this board seém in.the operation of the school district?

- What methods did the previous superlntendent use to ¢ comimunicate with the
: board?

"What communlcatlon strategies were successful in the past? What strateg:es

. dld not seem to meet the:r needs?

‘What is the general avallablhty of board members for communlcation durlng
the work week? .

%

pyright © 2002 by Corwin Press. All rights reserved. Reprinted from So Now Y;:ni re the

rerintendent! by John Eller and Howard C. Carlson. Thousand Qaks, CA: Corwin Press,

rw.corwinpress.com. Reproduction authorized only for the local school sate or non-
fit orgamzahon that has purchased this book

The template in Figure 2.1 is normally developed using mformahou |

m a variety of sources and targets obtaining general information related
the board’s communication heeds. Figure 2.2 was designed to assist you
you consider the comnmunication needs of mdwzdual board members

43




44

So Now Youw’re the Supcrintendent!

Figure 2.2 Individual Board Member Commuinication Needs Template -

This template has been designed with key questions you may want to ask your i
board members in relation to their cormmunication needs.. : S
I. What kinds of key information do'you want to stay informed about in 'relatio'n"”.-_':

to the operation of the school district? Ry

2. What is your preferred method for receiving this information?

3. What kinds of information would require me to contact you immediately!
What kinds of information are you comfortable waiting to receive on a
weekly basis? ' '

4. How would you feel about administrative staff members contacting you
instead of me in some cases? What is the district’s history related to adminis-
tratorfschool board communication? : '

5. What thoughtsfideas do you have to help us achieve good two-way comm
nication? ' o : ’ o

What did you learn as a result of this interview and how _é;an this informatio
be used to design a good communication plan? S "

Copyright © 2009 by Corwin Press. All rights reserved. Reprinted from So Now You're ¢
Superintendent! by John Eller and Howard C. Caxlson. Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Pre
www.corwinpress.com. Reproduction authorized only for the local school site or non-

profit organization that has purchased this book.” ‘




. The Supermtendent—~$chool Board Relationship

UCCESSF UL COMMUNICATION
ORM AND FREQUENCY

)IIIl and frequency related to board member conunumcaﬂon varies by
strict and individual supermtendent The key is to develop an overall
mmfhunication plan, but this is a step mhany superintendents do not

nbrace as they begin their new positions. As a new superintendent, you -

e ona sharp learhing curve, expected to quickly understand the district’s
rque igsues while at the same time mieeting hoards of people, many want-
g to bend your ear regarding an issue of political importance. New super-
tendents, in many cases, are overloaded by complicated demands and fail
take the time t0 develop a communication plan as desciibed earlier. In the
sehce of a plan, many new superintendents randorily choose their com:-
umca’non strategy. often without esi:abhshzzat7 form or frequency '

)rms of Comnmmcanon

"Once communication needs are identified, it is unportant to hone'in on

¢ methods or forms to be used. In Table 2.1 we provide an outline of a few

mmumcaﬁon me’chods and include the pros, cons, and common strate-
=s employed with each. As you review this figure, evaluate the methods
sed on your comnfort level and the needs of your board members.

- Typically supermtendents choose to communicate with individual
ard members using one of the four primary methods listed in Table 2.1: -

nail, phone calls, hardeopy, or face-to-face meetings. Hach has its advan-~

ses and disadvantages, but in combination these methods allow super- -

endents to successfu]ly communicate with their boards.

Special Note About E-Mail Communication _

In this day and age of e-mail communication the process of éqﬁal con-
:t with board members has become much. easier, but in most states your
niail is part of the public record and thus can be open to review. Addi-

nally, you need to remember that sending an e-mail to board members

buld take place in stages. In essence, you neéd to make sure that less
i a majority (a quortim) receives your e-mail at one time so that if they
sly, a violation of your state’s open meeting law does not oceur.

In Table 2.2 we have included a list of communication ideas and items
cons1der which can be used by superintendents. We include this Hst to
‘e you a jump-start in the communication process with y your board.

Although this list of ideas is not meant to be all encompassing, it does
wide an opportunity for you to begin thinking about the day-to-day
ricacies of your communication with the board. Superintendent-board
nmunication is distinct with each superintendent and each board. The
ms of communication used will vary based upon the unique character
the institution and the individuals mvolved ' -

45




Table 2.1

« Efficient (in most -
cases takes less time
than phone calls)

« Preferred method by

" many individuals

« Provides
documentation of
communitation

record

« Some board members
might see it as
impersonal

» Can be easily
forwarded on to others
{lacks confidentiality)

» Limits opportunity for
expahded conversation

» Can violate open
meeting laws if sent to
all board members
simultaneously

 Superintendent—Board Member Communication Methods
Methods Pros Cons Strategies$
E-Mail « Easily produced o E-mail is part of public | eUseas a'method to communicaté.

non-¢onfidential information

» Ask the school district’s attorney
for a confidentiality statement to
place as a permanent footer on’
all outgoing e-mail messages™ .

« in initial individual meetings with
_each board member determine
their preferred commumcatlon ’
“method .

e Can be used as periodic,
scheduled communication
strategy

Phone Call

» Provides quick
feedback )

« Reasombly efficient

« Offers personal touch
to communication

« Provides opportunity
for expanded
conversation

» Allows for
confidential
conversation

« Require respondent’s
availzbility to establish
communication

« Not as efficient as
e-mail, especially if

multiple Individuals are

to be contacted
+ Hard to document’
content of conversation

« Establish preferred contact times |
with individuals and record for -
future use ;

« Establish call log to confirm when
conversations take place "'

Hard
Copy

» Easily documented

« Provides opportunity
to include
attachments without
scanning

» More formal than
e-mail or phone
communication

« Time consuming t¢

. develop and distribute -

o Reproduced easily

{lacks confidentiality)

» Lends itself well to normal
communication strategy -
(i.e., Friday update of the weel’s' |;_
activities for the board) e

» Provide cover sheet with
hardcopy communication
indicating that some material
may be confidential

Face-to-
Face
Meeting

46

« Mast personal form

" of communication

« Establishes rapport

« Provides venue for
expanded discussion

. Provldes greater
opportunity to

" assess reaction to
items being
communicated

« Most inefficient method
of communication, very
time consuming

» Can be difficult with
detractors

» Hard to document
content of message

« Most eflective when established - | .
as a communication method early:|.-
in the supérintendent’s tenure |

o Best way to establish “equal
time” standard, especially when
meetings are conducted with
each board member priorto
board meeting to review agenda’

« In situations where important or
difficult information is discussed,
produce a surimary of issues :
addressed and e-mail to ;ndlwdual B
as a way to document
conversations-

o If, through expanded
conversation, important issues
are discussed or ideas generated

" make sure to send an e-mail to’

other board members as 2 follow
. up to keep everyone in the loop




The Superintendent—School Board Rélaﬁonship

fable 2.2 Superintendent-Board Communication ldeas and Considerations

Comimunication ldeas

Items to Consider

E-Mail Options: . .

» Send out weeldy school district update via e-mail.

s Employ an e-mail communication system which
provides updates to board members {and others)
when the district’s Web site is modified.

» Use e-mall as 2 means to communicate efﬁcientiy
- during periods of crisis.

v Utilize e-mail to prompt thinking related to a topxc of
importance prior to & board workshop.

o' Apply e-mail as 2 method to distribute general
.'school board communication in an efficient manner.

e Be careful not to ask board members
to make decisions via e-mail, which
could be construed as conducting a
meeting without public notice:

« Keep in mind that e-mail Is public
information. - .

Phone Call Opt;ons-

v Use phone calls to add emphasis to an lmportant
‘message (such-as the district réceiving an award, or
to 'discuss a lawsuit which is pending).

» Call board members to simply “check in” and see
‘how they are doing, or to ask whather they have
questions regarding anythmg that is going on in the
~district.,

' Contact board members viz phone when yOu need
th dlscuss personnel issues. Use of e-mail in this .
situation is inappropriate:

vConsider district-provided cell phones for board
“inembers to enhance communication (this optuons
will hawve its pros and cons).

o Always use phone calls to add a
personal touch, but because of their
time consuming nature, apply this form
of communication purposefully.

o Set the standard early on in your
superintendency that phone calls will be
used as one form of communication,
but not likely the predominate form
(realizing that for certain board

members it might be the predominate

form if they are not technologically -
proficient). .

-lard Copy Optaons'

+Send ‘out hard copy of items which you want to
guard against being w:dely distributed {mark as
-confidentiaf).

+Send out thank you cards or b:rthday cards to board
fmembers to further build refationship.

Use hard copy to communicate all legal documenrs

» Over time move board members away
from hard copy communication as they
are cumbersome and inefficient.

» Analyze which itemns are appropriate
for hard copy communication and .
deslgn a migration process for other
documents.

‘ace-to-Face Meeting Options:

‘Establish early on in"your stperintendency a regular

timeline to meet with each board member to discuss

the following questions:

°As a district are we aligning our gperations with
“our vision, mission, and goals?

SAre we effectively measurmg our performance
against our vision, mission, and goals?

©What are things you are exctted about i

. the district? .-

Identify things that require attention in the dlstrlct

Prior to attending school events prepare yourse!f by

thmkmg about what the three most pressing issues

are at that point In the district. This will prepare you

for discussion that is likely to take place with board

members and others at thesé events.

Use face:to-face meetings to communicate the most

confidential of information.

o ldentify other locally important issues
to discuss during your face-to-face
meetings with board members,

o Always record in writing the cutcome
of face-to-face conversations with board
members for future reference,

47




48

" 50 Now You're the Superintendent! : . .

Frequency of Communication - E
Frequency of communication with board members can be broken
down into two primary areas: emergency and normal communication: -
Emergency communication will take place periodically, but should follow
the tenets of the communication plan that was discussed earlier. It is -
important to understand when communication should take place and sur- -
rounding which set of issues. Each board will see emergency communica-
tion in a different manner and thus this issue should never be taken for ;
granted. As previously mentioned it is also important to understand the -
board president’s role in the process of emergency communication. * | -
With emergency communication, it is also crucial to understand how
the superintendent can most efficiently and effectively make contact with -
individual board members. Some may want you to call their office, while -
. others may. not want any contact at their place of business. Certain board "
members may only be available via e-mail and others want to be contacted :
via cell phone. Regardless of the method, it is important fo clearly under:;
stand how ‘you will engage board members quickly and efficiently, espé-..
cially in times of crisis. S L _ e
Normal, ongoing communication is much more purposeful, but again’/
should be borne out of the communication plan. It provides an opportunity.
to consider many different methods for planned, periodic communication,
but as with emergency communicatior,.should be a function of identified
board member preferences. The goal of normal commuriication is much &
different than its counterpért in that it is aimed at providing information on :.
an ongoing basis. Normal communication is very important to establish ag- ;
it indicates your willingness to be open with the board. The board expects:’
you to malke normal communication a priority, but typically will be open.:
regarding the methods you select, As stated earlier, the important issue is

to develop a communication plan and dutifully stick to it.

oint #6:. In the establishment of your é@mm'ghiggpgon fan;

be's

dress commanication forms and frequenty.

ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE SUPERINTENDENT-
BOARD CHAIR/ PRESIDENT COMMUNICATION 7

The superintendent-board chair/president relationship is unique and
requires special attention. Below, in Figure 2.3, we have provided an inter:
view template for you to use when establishing communication guidelines
with your board chair/president. :



The Superintendent-School Board Re]ationship

iguré 2.3 Board Chair/President Interview Template

his template has been designed with the key questions you may want to ask your
5ard chair/president in relation to his or her communication needs,

;- Due to the unique nature of your position as-board chairfpresident, what
~ kinds of key information do you want to stay informed about in relation to
*" the operation of the school district? ’ :

~ How do you want to work together to develop the board meeting agenda?

- What is yciur' preferred method for receiving this information?

What kinds of informiation would require me to contact you immediately?
How do you want to handle the notification of other board member related
to this crucial information? : Ce

‘What thoughtsfideas do )'»'ou have to help us achieve good two-way commu-
nication? o , R 7

What did you learnas a result of this interview and how can the information
be used to design a good communication plan? '

yright © 2009 by Corwin Press. All rights reserved. Reprinted from So Now You're the
tintendent! by John Elter and Howard C. Carlson. Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Press,
¥.corwinpress.com. Reproduction authorized only for the local school site or non-
it organization that has purchased this book. :




50 So Now YO_U.,I.'C the_Superintendeqt!
EMERGENGY COMMUNICATION STANDARDS |

From time to time, situations arise that require immediate communication
and fast decisions. While these vary from district to district, the following.

list outlines some of the more common “emergencies” we have encountered _
in our work with superintendents that require immediate board contact:

¢ Abus accident o :
A parent has gone to the media about a situation they are
displeased abouf - ' o

A fundraising drive has encountered a negative situation
The death or severe illness of an employee

The death or severe illness of a board member _

A board member has been arrested or accused of a crime
An employee has been arrested or accused of a crime

A former employee has been accused of a major crime

A child has been abducted from a school '

An attempt has been made to abduct a child at a school
An athletic team has been accused of a rules violation

A water main has broken in one of the district buildings
The heating system has failed in one of the district building
School is being dismissed because of severe weather ‘
School is starting late because of severe weather

A worker has been injured or killed while working on a -
district project _ o S
Students have decided to protest at a local school

*  Major vandalism has occurred in a district building

.~...0.....Q0.0 L 4

®

Most of these examples required that the superintendent immediately -
contact the school board. This contact is necessary so the board is well .
informed and not taken by surprise when members hear about the incident *
“out on the street,” Develop minimum standards related to when you, as |’
superintendent, should contact-board members and, separately, the board -
chair/president (this is important because it could be different). Some boatds -
may leave it to your discretion entirely, but we fecommend working with "]
your board-to set some standards and procedures for emergency notification -
procedures. Figure 2.4 contains a template for your use in working with the *
board to design the parameters for emergency related communication. . - -

in‘designing a proceds relateif to when an

th your board when-émergency Situ

HT: Be purposeful
ll fake éontact.wi

. -how:

Poinit




The Su'perintendent—.—School Board Relationship

suré 2.4 - Emergency Communication Processes and Procedures

Js& thls form to plan the emergency commumcatxon pararneters and procedures

hin your schooi district,

Board Contact Priority

High = Immediate
S Medium = Within three hours
. Situation Low = Next day

Preferred Cdntact Method
{phone, face-to-face,
e-mail, etc.)

Pynght © 2009 by Corwin Press. All rights reserved. Reprinted from S0 Now You're the
erintendent! by John Eller and Howard C. Carlson. Thousand Qaks, CA: Corwin Press,
fwcorwmpress com. Reproduction authorized only for the local school site or nonprofit

amzahon that has purchased thls book.

51




52

commuriication plans, which then have a much greater degree of succes_sf'f-_;g

process with their boards, in part to establish expectations, roles, ang
- responsibilities. This is an important process as it provides everyone in th

So Now You're the Superintendent! -

MAINTENANCE OF YOUR | L
COMMUNICATION PLAN WITH THE BOARD =

-Even if you have put in the time to.develop and implement a good com-

munication plan, it is natural for issues and situations to arise that causd -
the plan to deteriorate. As circumstances and problems cause stress, ag
people become busy, as you and your board members begin to develop !
your own ideas, and as you naturally begin to talk with some member -
more than others, the chance for misunderstaadings and a feeling of
neglect can sét in. This can be a critical time in the superintendent-boatrd :
relationship and may require a “refocusing” or “refinement” of the origis -
nal plan. In our work with superintendents and as we have served in the"
position, we have found that building in a barometer to gauge board mém: |
ber perceptions it vital. This information can be used to refocus or refine *

in maintaining positive relationships with board members. Those supefin:
tendents who do not regularly assess the perceptions of their board. may’
not see the negative ideas held by some members. Disgruntled board: |
members have been known to use their negative attitudes to build cases ;
against their superintendents and ultimately turn the rest of the board:.
members against them, similar to the situation faced by Ed at the begin
ning of this chapter. - ' .

. Key Point #8: Periodically reviev the impact of your tommunication p
- With-yolir board memBers. Make' the necessary- adjustmeits. and: refi
- ments to lyour plar ‘and your strategies to: maintain-good superintender

~ =board relations.” . .-~

Once hired, smart superi.nte‘ndenfs typically go through an initial refrea

superintendent-board relationship the ability to get started on the righ
foot. Many new superintendents are afraid to engage in this process of set
ting expectations, as they don't want to address controversial topics edtls
in their tenure. The problem is that if these items are not addressed early
they are rarely discussed until a problem-arises. One strategy to consider
in addressing these topics is to ask either the search consultant who wa
engaged in your hiring process, or possibly someone from the state admin’
istrators’ or school boards’ association, to facilitate this retreat. In many’



The Superintendent—School Board Relationship

cases an “independent” third party can raise issues and discuss topics that
would be uncomfortable for the superintendent or board to broach alone.
Use of a third party can also lend credibility to this important process,
which allows everyone to feel like they are “doing the right thing” in
addressing these critical questions. . ‘ : o

~ One subset of this discussion is a review of the board’s ethics stan-
dards, or development of a board operating protocol. Personally we prefer
the establishment of an operating protocol for several reasons. Board eth-

ics standards are typically part of adopted school district policy and, ata_

maximum, are perused annually as part of the board’s self-evaluation pro-
cess. The problem is that although these ethics standards are likely well
written and contain iinportant information, their use has become pedes-
trian. A board operating protocol, on the other hand, can be adopted, or
réaffirmed, each successive year as.part of the board’s reorganization and
used on an ongoing basis, which calls attention to its significant tenets, Tt
cari also be reworked on an annual basis as issues arise which require
attention. The board may also want to establish an intervention systemn as
part of its operating protocol for members who violate its tenets. Sanctions
that range from a verbal warning by the board president to censure, can be
zonsidered as a way to bring a level of importance to the process.

*-"In Figure 2.5 we have provided an example of components included in
1 board ethics policy that can be adapted through the retreat process to
serve the unique needs of your district. '

?iguke 2.5 Sample Ethics Standards

362_11*(:1 Ethics .Si:andards

‘® 'ﬁ'AtEend all regularly scheduled board meetings insofar as possible, and become
. inforied concerning the issues to be considered at those meetings.

o Recognize that decisions should be made only after discussion at 'p'ublic[y held
. board meetings. : : s

® :Render all decisions based on available facts and independent judgment, and
-refuse to surrender that judgment to individuals or special-interest groups.

® Encourage the free expression of opinion by all board members, and seek
_-Systematic commufiication between the board and students, staff, and all ele-
ments of the community. : o :

'_? Work with other board members to establish effective board paolicies
~.and'to delegate authority for the administration of the schools to the
_ superintendent. - S o .

* Communicate to other board members and the superintendent expressions
.- of public reaction to board policies and schoo} programs.

®. Be informed about current educational issues by individual study and through
- --participation in programs providing needed information, such as those spon-

‘sored by state and national school boards associations.

(Continued)

53




54

-Figure 2.5 (Contihued)

e The board wil address its behavior by Yearly self-evaluation and by addressing

" So Now You’re the Superintendent!

* Support the employment of persons best qualified to serve as, schaol staff
members,and insist on a regular and impartial evaluation of all personnel, -

¢ Avoid being placed in a position of conflict of interest, and refrain from using'
board position for personal or partisan gain. S
© Take no private action that will compromise the board or administration, and -
respect, the confidentiality of information that is aprivi!eged under applicable
. law. : o

o Remember always that a board member’s first and greatest concern must be .
the educational welfare of the students attending the public schools.

SOURCE: Found on the Arizona School Boards Association Web site at:
http:/ /1p.ctspublish.com/asba/public/ lpext.dﬂ?f:templates&fn:main—h.hhn

Figure 2.6 Sample Board Operating Protocol

Achievement Valley Public
School Board Operating Protocol

vidually to the following operating protocol:

* Surprises to the board or the superintendent will be the exception, not the
rule. There should be no surprises at'a board meeting. We agree to-ask thé
board chair or the superintendent to place an item on the agenda instead:
bringing it up unexpectedly at the meeting. : ‘

© The last stop, not the first, will be the school board, We agree to foliow th
chain of command and insist that others do, so. While the board is eager
listen to its constituents and staff, each inquiry is to be referred to the perso
who can properly and expeditiously address the issue.

° Asa parent, a board member retains the right to express his or her ow]
personal opinions in verbal and/or written form. o

* A board member will not “solicit an issue,” become a “ball carriar” for oth

or work around administrative employees and will encourage others to')
ent their own issues, problems, or proposals in a constructive manner.

© The board wil emphasize planning, policy making, and public'relatioh_s“r'
than becoming involved in the management of the schools. '

itself to any individual problems, such as poor meeting attendance or leak
confidential information. ' :



The Superintendent—School Board Relationship .

The board will set clear goals for themselves and the superintendent. The board
- and superintendent will set clear goals for the Achievement Valley Public Schools.

The superintendent is the chief executive officer and should recommend pro-
. pOse, OF suggest on most matters before the board,

 Individual board members do not have authority. Only the board asa whofe has
authority. We agree that an individual board member will not take unilateral
“action. The board chair will communicate the pOSItton(s) of the board on con-
' troversial issues. ' ‘

55

;:,When board members serve on various schoo] commlttees their role shall be -

" defined by the board as silent observer or active participant.

Conduct at a board meeting is very important. We agree to avoid words and
- actions that create a negative impression on an individual, the board, or the dis-
trict. While we encourage debate and differing points of view, we will do it with

“care and respect to avoid an escalation of negative impressions or incidents.”

* Individual members may disagree with a board actlon, but will support the deci-
.sion of the board as a whole. :

To be efficient and effective, long board meetings must be avoided. Points are to

‘be made in as few words as possible; speeches at board meetings will be minimal.

"I a board member believes he or she doesn't have enough information or has
questions, either the supenntendent or the board chair is to be ca[fed before the
. meeting. : .

Board meetings are for demsron making, action, and votes, not endless dlscusswn.
We agree to “move the question” when discussion is repetitive.
- The board will not play to the audience.We agree to speak to the issues on the

-agenda and attend to our fellow board members. Facts and information needed

~from the administration will be referred to the superintendent.

The board will represent the needs and interests of all the chiidren in the
_AchievementVaHay Public Schools.

"Board Chair

Board Member

Board Member

_Board Member

Bogrd Member

Date

)}mght © 2002 by Corwin Press All nghts reserved. Reprmted from So Now You're the
erintendent! by John Eller and Howard C. Carlson. Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Press,
Wcorwmpress com. Reproduction authorized only for the local school site or nonprofit
mization that has purchased this book.




56

. 'So Now You’re the Superinténdent!

WHO HAS AUTHORITY FOR WHAT
THE BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT AS A TEAM

A queshon often asked by board members and supermtendents is, ”What .

is the role of the board versus the role of the superintendent in the opera- ||

tion of the school district?” The age-old statement that the board sets pol- °
icy and the superintendent administers that policy would seem to indicate |-
a very distinct and clear d1v1dmg line between the respechve roies ofeach, :
That division, however, is not always SO clear nor is it one upon Whlch G
everyone involved agrees. o
Board members are usually “doers”; they operate busmesses,_ they run
homes, they dig ditches, they buy supplies. “Doers” often find it hard to
look at the big overall picture and make decisions that cause other people .,
to “do” the job. Many times they are tempted to get in and “do” the job .
themselves. Conflict situations arise when the board and the superinten- -
dent have not defined their specific roles within the district. .
Because the needs-of a district vary, and because leadership and man- ~
agement styles are different, there are no universal answers to “who has
the authority for what.” The real need in each district is for the board and .-
superintendent to decide what each is to do and establish proper proce- -
dures and policy that will lead to the performance of those duties. o
Board members, as they make decisions and find themselves involved -

in the business of the district, should ask themselves: Are we providing _:
leadership to the superintendent and staff and establishing policy for the ™
district or have we stepped into the rolé of the administration? Super- "
intendents shouild ask themselves: Am I providing leadership to the
board in pointing out areas where policy is needed, or am I usurping the
board’s responsibility by establishing policy? Worse yet, am I forcing .
the board to make administrative decisions because I don’t want to take -
responsibility?
_ Keeping roles clear and commumcatmn open is the key to good
superintendent-board relations. In Table 2.3 a chart listing the possible
division of roles and responsibilities between the board and superlnten-
dent is provided. .
Consider the following tips regarding board. standards and operatmg
protocols: . B

e  Superintendents either conduct a retreat or ask a third party to
" meet with the board early in their tenure to discuss expectattons,

~ roles, and responsibilities.

e  Board standards, which are located in policy, are typically Well -
written, but riot reviewed with any frequency. =

e Board operating protocols lend themselves to annual rev1eW
. ongoing use -and needed, revision. Board member signatisres
should be included in an effective board operating protocol. L




- The Superintendent—School Board Relationship

éble 2.3 Typical Roles/Responsibilities of the Board and Superintendent

* School Board Role/ Superintendent Role/

" Task Responsibility : Responsibility
I Policy . { Adopts - Implements and suggests -
2. Meetings In charge of - A Serves as a resource person
3 Budgets/Finance/ | Adopts and monitors Prepares, administers,
- Audits ' monitors details
{. Instruction . Establish criteria, approves | Recommends, oversees
- and monitors staff’s efforts '
5. Personnel. | Establishes criteria, Interviews, recommends,
. .| approves or rejects hires, evaluates, promotes
' staff development
5. Facilities/ Develops policy on use of | Implements policy, writes
Transportattonl | facilities, transportation, rules and regulations, makes -
Food Services | food services _ | recommendations
7 Community | Creates a posmve image Creates a positive image

Relations | for dlstr:c:t for district, directs
IR : communication

3. The Board and Hires the superintendent, | Worls at the pleasure of the
.Superintendent | establishes expectations, | board, is chief executive
: .- 7| evaluates officer of the district

YURCE: Adapted from the Nebraska Association of School Boards.

e Board operating protocols are most effective when they include
‘board member de31gned interventions for violations of the
pmtocol

UMMARY

Chapter 2 we have examined the crucial relationship between the super-

tendent and the board. This relationship is one of the most important to
ar career and ultimately the stability and success of the school district.
3 you prepare to start working on the ideas and sirategies you feel will
Ip establish and maintain a good relationship with your board, think
out the following queshons that highlight the information presented in
is chapter:

57




. 58

So Now You’re the Superinfendentl_

e  How can you determine the board’s culture related to the super-
- intendeni-board relationship? : -
o - How will you address the necessary aspects of commumcatmg f
with your board? ::

e - Why isitimportant to define the role of the board chair/ pre31dent
and get the entire board to agree on your unique relahonshlp Wlth-f"

. this person?
s  Why are board operating protocols an 1mportant part of your;"-:f
- superintendency? -

e How can you treat each board member equally and meet their'_f;
unique needs? - i

e At what point will you develop a supermtendentmboard commu-ﬁ".
' nication plan? .

Having a good relationship with your board members is not unpossri.;'_
ble, but it does take work on both your part and theirs. Superintendents
who nurture this relatzons}up tend to have stability in their district and are
able to work through issues in a positive and productive manner. Those{-j-ﬁ
who don't put much time in building relationships with their board miem: .-
bers or see it as'a burden could be headed for trouble. We hope you have.__:{j
discovered some good ideas in this chapter that will help you as you Workf
to build positive relationships with your board members. S

In Chapter 3, Organizational Trust and Culture: What Every Superm— 2
tendent Should Know, we move beyond building a relationship with your
board and focus on ideas to help you work with your staff and the-com-;
munity. From our experiences, those superintendents that are able to::
develop trusting relationships with their staff are headed for success and
smooth operations; those who try to move forward without these key cozn-:"':
porents run info land mines on a consistent basis.




SUPERINTENDENT’S TRA
ENTRY PLAN & GOALS

La Grande School District

Proposed by:
George Mendoza
Superintendent of Schools

Page 1 of 11
George Mendoza
Board Approved:



La Grande School District
Superintendent’s Transition Entry Plan

Purpose

The purpose of the Superintendent’s Transition Entry Plan is to provide a roadmap for the direction of the
school district. This road map will be created through deep analysis of information gathered through
listening sessions. This information will guide the Superintendent’s work plans and will inform staff
during the development of the La Grande School District Goals and Action Plans.

Listening and learning sessions will dominate Phase I. The sessions will consist of numerous meetings
with district leadership and district office support staff, as well as external leaders, including other area
superintendents and community leaders, school principals and administrators, professional associations,
leadership groups, student advocacy groups, parent groups and community organizations.

Reflection and the analysis of data collected and of anecdotal information gathered will guide Phase 11, in
which we will verify assumptions and identify the “gaps™ in our programs. Those deficiencies and
challenges that generate a sense of urgency and merit our full attention will become “catalysts™ for change
during the Superintendent’s tenure,

Leading will dominate the final phase of the Transition Acceleration Plan culminating with the
development of a La Grande School District Strategic Plan. This Strategic Plan will have holistic goals
and Action Plans to achieve these goals. The series of explicit Action Plans will be presented to the
Board of Education and to the L.a Grande community. These Action Plans will serve as tactical
blueprints; roadmaps to improve the level of academic achievement of all students and to firmly establish
internal operating, reporting and accountability systems. These Action Plans will also serve to support
and enhance, when necessary, the La Grande School District’s approved Improvement Plans. The
Improvement Plans will become the guiding documents for our focused efforts to improve continuously.

Lastly, it should be noted that the successful transition of the Superintendent will occur simultaneously
with the responsibility of operating the school district. The Superintendent’s duties and responsibilities
associated with the daily operations and problem-solving are in full course while the entry plan takes
place.

Page 2 of 11
George Mendoza



Planned Activities and Primary Purpose

La Grande School Board
Purpose: Establish a strong working relationship with each individual member of the Board and
build a cohesive governance team with a common purpose.

District and Site Administrators
Purpose: Establish strong professional relationships with key personnel inside the District and
begin to assess the strengths and needs of the leadership team.

Faculty and Support Staff
Purpose: Establish strong and collaborative relationships with each of the District’s professional
associations and groups of employees.

Community Leadership

Purpose: Meet civic leaders, business leaders, non-profit foundation leaders, neighboring school
district leaders, law enforcement and parent organizations to generate good will, restore
confidence in our mission, solicit and build suppoert, establish communication channels, and lay
the groundwork to begin strategic planning.

Political Leadership
Purpose: Meet local and state political leaders and establish means for regular communication.

District Tour and School Visitations
Purpose: Understand the District’s neighborhoods, demographics, history, culture, context to
understand the differences between the District’s schools.

Local Media

Purpose: Articulate goals clearly, explicitly, and early so that the public, the press and the
education community know what to expect. Generate publicity and awareness for initial “listen
and learn” efforts. Demonstrate the sense of urgency behind the successful completion and
initial implementation of a District strategic plan and successful execution of Board goals.

Student Leadership/Student Voice
Purpose: Meet with diverse student groups to understand the student perspective of our school
system.

Page 3 of |1
George Mendoza



Goals and Objectives

Phase I: Transition & Introduction: Understanding the Context, Intentional Engagement,
Listen & Learning, Active Participation and Getting Involved;
July 2017-October 2017

Phase II: Building Momentum: Continued Listening & Learning; Collect and Organize
Data from stakeholder meetings; Stay visible; Implement surveys and gather data; Work on
Establishing Credibility

October 2017-December 2017

Phase JI1I: Engagement & Planning: Ideas to Support Goal Setting and Strategic Action
Plans for the Future;
January 2018-April 2018

Listening and learning sessions will dominate Phase 1. The sessions will consist of numerous
meetings with District staff, school site leaders, community leaders, community organizations,
professional associations, parent organizations and students.

Inquiry, reflection, and the analysis of data and qualitative information gathered will dominate
~Phase II, in which we will verify assumptions and identify the “gaps™ in our programs. Those

deficiencies and challenges that generate a sense of urgency and merit our full attention will

become “our work” and the “catalysts” for change during the Superintendent’s tenure.

Future Focus will dominate the final stage of the Transition/Entry Plan culminating with
collaborative review of current district goals and action plans; Goal will be to share information
gathered and work in partnership with district stakeholders to development future vision and
direction for La Grande School District. This will inform district goals and action plans. With
Board approval; Superintendent will begin the process of creating a District Strategic Plan. This
plan will be comprised of a series of holistic goals with explicit Action Plans presented to the
School board and the La Grande community. There will be a Strategic Planning team that will be
comprised of community members, parents, District and school staff, and Board members. The
team will set the strategic direction for the District by articulating the District’s mission, goals
and focus areas as it strives to increase the achievement of all students. A clear and focused plan
is critical to communicate District priorities to all stakeholders, this will serve as a roadmap to
success and to help to align efforts toward a common, student-centered outcome. The La Grande
School Board has final approval of the Strategic Plan.

Page 4 of 11
George Mendoza



Goal 01: OQur Compact

Ensure effective District governance through positive productive Board — Superintendent
relationships.

Objectives:

L)

Establish the Board and Superintendent as a cohesive governance team with a singular
agenda on improving the achievement of all students.

Build positive, productive and trusting working relationships with the Board members
and individuals.

Intended Activities:

&

L]

Meet with the Board Chair and Vice Chair to schedule Board/Superintendent retreat,
Establish clear understanding of roles, responsibilities, expectations and systems for
mutual accountability.

Establish clear understanding of Board/Superintendent protocols.

Establish regular meeting times with the Board Chair and Vice Chair for reviewing Board
Agendas,

Establish regular meetings with each Board member for one-on-one conversations and
perspectives.

Establish superintendent evaluation process, procedures, timelines and goals.

Establish regular communications systems with the Board.

Schedule Board retreats and workshops.

Page 5 of 11
George Mendoza



Goal 02: Connections

Build public trust and confidence through open 2nrd honest communication and positive
relationships among stakeholder groups.

Objectives:

o Increase personal knowledge and understanding of the various regions and
neighborhoods within the La Grande School District.

e Establish positive relationships with District leadership and meet with all district office
and school staff to validate each as individuals who are critical to the District’s success.

¢ Communicate with parents and encourage positive partnerships on behalf of students.

o Establish a positive, professional and collaborative relationship with school district
professional associations and labor groups.

¢ Connect with the political leadership in the city, county and state to forge clear lines of
communications, advocacy, and support for District students.

o Connect with EOU; look to understand relationship and look for collaboration and
partnership so that we can work cohesively as a K-22 system.

¢ Establish positive working relationships with members of the business community,
leadership service groups, support and non-profit agencies in the community.

¢ Increase opportunities to promote the District’s image within the community and enhance
advocacy for the District’s needs and mission.

¢ Determine the effectiveness of internal and external communication processes.

¢ Continue to expand the District’s open and positive relationship with the media.

¢ Establish a relationship with the student leaders at each of the middle and high schools.

Intended Activities:

o Identify the community’s business leaders, civic leaders, foundation leaders and
educational leaders and their respective affiliation with the school district.

e Attend and participate in key city and county committees.

o Attend meetings of key organizations such as the Chamber of Commerce, Kiwanis and
service/civic clubs/organizations for initial listening and learning sessions. Establish
routine communications protocols with these groups.

e Become of member of self-selected service/civic/social clubs/organizations.

Page 6 of 11
George Mendoza



Goal 02 - continued

e Schedule meetings with the established parent organizations for initial listening and
learning sessions. Establish regular meetings and communications with these
organizations.

e Schedule meetings with each employee associations’ leadership group for initial listening
and learning sessions. Establish regular meetings and communications with these
groups.

° Schedule meetings with established student leadership groups for initial listening and
learning sessions. Establish regular meetings and communications with these
organizations.

 Schedule regular visitations to all District schools for the purpose of interacting with
students (lunch, breaks, extracurricular and athletic events).

o Assess the quality, quantity and effectiveness of all existing forms of communication
with various stakeholders.

e Assess internal and external communications, and the roles of staff, Superintendent and
Board of Trustees in each of these domains.

o Write letters/articles to various stakeholders, using direct and media-facilitated
communication expressing my goals, expectations, hopes and plans for continuous
improvement for our schools, students and community.

Page 7 of 11
Georpe Mendoza



Goal 03: Execute

High expectations and increased student achievement for all students.

Objectives:

L]

Analyze patterns in student achievement data and the gaps in achievement
between/among identifiable groups of students to determine an appropriate course of
action for improving instruction and learning.

Engage parents as primary supporters of their child’s academic achievement.

Establish formal and informal internal and external monitoring and evaluation designs for
instructional support and intervention systems.

Understand current strategies, strengths and opportunities for improvement in the
District’s instructional program.

Understand and assess the current goals and action plan in place for the District and
school sites to meet student performance goals.

Intended Activities:

Meet with the Admin team to discuss the performance of District schools to assess the
quality of actions proposed for continuous improvement of schools.

Meet with site principals/assistant principals to analyze and review the instructional
program, practices, curriculum and support materials for evidence of effectiveness in
improving student achievement.

Review student data for all populations.

Review district curriculum, instruction and assessment for high expectations, alignment
to standards, and appropriate instructional modifications for students in English
Language Learner programs and for students with special needs.

Complete visits to District classrooms to observe the current state of teaching and
learning in the District.

Review the scope of interventions considered, attempted or in place at all our campuses.
Assess which District schools need additional support due to variance in student
demographics and provide an action plan to provide this support.

Review and analyze the District’s student information system(s), monitoring systems and
evaluation systems for effectiveness and accountability in terms of how the data enhances
instructional decision-making.

Page 8 of 11
CGeorge Mendoza



Goal 03 - continued

o Review the District’s professional development plan.
e Develop a plan to increase parent participation in their child’s education.
e Utilize a common theme in all District communications, effort and actions.

e Connect all Board goals & Action Plans to the priorities and goals identified to the
District Strategic Plan.

Page 9 of 11
George Mendoza



Goal 04: Excellence by Design

Increase organizational effectiveness, efficiency and accountability,
Objectives:
¢ Assess and determine departmental alignment within the organization to ensure a student-
centered agenda.
e Consolidate and streamline similar functions in order to maximize service and support to
schools.
e Establish cohesive and focused District office & Administrative team.
o Understand the District’s Facility Master Plan.

Intended Activities:
e Review all critical documents:
o Board policies and administrative regulations
District Instructional Plans
Employee handbooks
Student achievement by school
Financial projections and budget processes
Alignment of standards, curriculum, assessment and professional development
Legal proceedings and settlements
Accountability plans and processes
Facilities utilization, plans and projects
o Safety and emergency plans
e Request an assessment of current status from each department, an analysis of the critical
work priorities for the upcoming year and the proposed plan of action for each.
o Establish a schedule to meet with all administrators and key staff.
s Conduct organizational analysis.
o What do we need to start, stop and continue doing?
o How can each department be supportive of improvement in student achievement?
o What support is needed to be successful?
e Review and assess the district office structure to enhance workflow and redirect, where
appropriate, service delivery to continue improvement of school sites.
s Establish accountability measures and determine data to be collected, reviewed and
analyzed each quarter.

©C 0 0 0 0 0 o O

e Incorporate appropriate technology throughout all levels of the organization.
¢ Review funding streams supporting each area of District operations and reassess ways to -
maximize support for our schools.

Page 10 of {1
George Mendoza



(Goal 05: Safe Harbor

Establish clear and definitive strategy to address issues related to school safety, security,
and climate for all schools.

Objectives:

(-]

Increase student attendance, and thus achievement opportunities, by decreasing tardiness,
absences, and truancy.

Connect school safety, security, climate perceptual data and quantitative data to existing
strategies to determine gaps.

Understand established enforcement of policies and practices related to student conduct
and discipline.

Intended Activities:

L]

Staff to brief Superintendent on existing student attendance, tardiness, suspension,
expulsion and truancy data, policies, regulations and practices.
Staff to brief Superintendent on overlapping District, law enforcement, social services
and other agency related action to aforementioned item.
Design and implement an attendance campaign, if necessary.
Conduct organizational analysis

o What do we need to start, stop and continue doing?

o How can each department be supportive of dramatic improvements in student

achievement?
o What support is needed to be successful?

Page 11 orll
George Mendoza






Figure 2.2 Individual Board Member Communication Needs Template

1. What kinds of key information do you want to stay informed about in relation to
the operation of the school disfrict?

2. What is your preferred method for receiving this information?

3. What kinds of information would require me to contact you immediately? What
kinds of information are you comfortable waiting to receive on a weekly basis?

4. How would you feel about administrative staff members contacting you instead of

me in some cases? What is the district's history related to administrator/school
hoard communication?

5. What thoughts/ideas do vou have fo help us achieve dood two-way

communication 7

From page 44, So Know You're the Superintendent






True Colors Survey:

Instructions: Compare 2ll 4 boxes in each row. Do not analyze each word; just get a sense
of each box.Score gach of the four boxes in each row from most to jleast as it
describes you: 4 = most, 3 = a lot, Z = somewhat, 1 = least,

Row | ) A B L D
Active Organized Warm Learning
Variety Planned Melpfui Science
gpmé?tunities Neat Friends Quiet
Sggntaneous Parental Authentic Versagiie
Flevible Traditional Harmonious Inventive
Responsible Compassionate Competent
- Score!  Score! Score’ - 'Scora]
How 2 | 28 I G H
Curious Caring Orderly Action
Ideas People Oriented | On-time Challenges
Questions Feelings Honest %)rg;?g;:fge
Conceptual Unigue Stabie Emgactfui
Knowledge Empathetic Sensible
Problem Solver Communicative Dependable
;S‘cdr&é i '-Sf:or'e:‘g Score - Scorel
Row 3 i K i.
Helpful Kind Playful Independent
Trustworthy Understanding Quick Exploring
Dependable Giving Adventurous Competent
Loval Devoted Confrontive Theoretical
y i Warm Open Minded Why Questions
Conservative Poetic independent Ingenious
Organized
. Score L -Smreé Score ! Score!
Row 4 M N Q P
Follow Active Sharing Thinking
Rules Frae Getting Along Solving Problems
Useful Winning Feealings Perfectionistic
Save Money Daring Tender Determined
Concerned impulsive inspirational Complex
Procedural Risk Taker Dramatic Composed
Cooperative
‘Scote | Score % Score Score |
Row 5 Q) R 8 s
Puzzies Social Causes Exciting Pride
Seeking Info Easy Going Lively Tradition
Making Sense Happy Endings Hands On Do Things Right
Philosophical Approachable Courageous Orderly
Principled Affectionate Skittful Conventional
Rational Sympathetic On Stage Careful
Score| -'Score'i 1. Seore! o Scorel

ifany

i

of the scor

es in the coioreoxes are less than 5 or greater than 20 you have

made an error. Please go back and read the instructions.







‘Are innovative and logical
- Seek to understand the wcr!d
Need to be. competent
-'-'Fﬁequ;ra mteiieatasai freedam -
Are curious - S
Question auiharsty

‘Push themselves to. smpmve
Seek pargez:tmn inplay -

Are siew to make decisions

‘Walue concise communication
- Look for intellectual sitmuiatsan e
Enjoy intriguing dlscussmms
Are somatsmes ab%mams Eﬂ
‘emotions =

Are detached

Believe work is péay _ i
Are drawn to techmcal ac::upaimns
Analyze and rearrange systems
Focus on the future =~
Bring lnnnvation ia scmety

y WW? @ g@% @W %" o %ﬁ ﬁ” |

a
B

Are dutiful and stable
Need to be useful
Want to be self-sufficient
Value organization

Desire punctuality

Schedule their lives

Make and keep commitments
Measure worth by completion
Are goal-orienied

Value rules

Prepare for the future

Are inclined to join groups
Believe work comes before play
Safequard tradition

Prefer order and cleanliness
Are responsible and dedicated
Are drawn 1o respected
gccupations

Enjoy paositions of authority
Desire structure

Bring stability to society

FFPFFPEFFFFFPPFRrREFEREFV

PEF

hitp:/hsad.org (Head Start of Greater Dallas)

‘May become intellectually asmaied g

&
%.
N
b
K
B
i
-
B
4
B
i
B
B
%ﬁ
B
ks
B
B
Ba

Are free and smnianeaus
Are ampukswe nsk»takers

- Are active e
~Are op!:amrsﬁc

Resist cammziment

- Can hecnme vmms{}s
“Thrive on crises -
Aredrawnto 100!3 s -
“Like to be the: center of attanmn
Have great andurans;e

3 .'_Are drawn o actian gobs
Need variety - i

* Are dynamic, amma{ed
communicators S
Are cﬂmpetstﬁve R

- Deal with the here and mw

“Are bold in reiatemshaps

Are generous i 2

‘Have difficulty fmdmg ac:ceptance e
_Like to live in a casual atmosphere R
:'Brmg'excstement to sm'::ety S

Are in search of themselves

Need to feel unique

Must be true to themselves

Look for symbolism

Value close relationships
Encourage expression

Desire quality ime with loved ones
MNeed opporiunities to be creative
Compraomise and caoperate
Nurture people, plants and animals
Look beyond the surface

Share emotions

Make decisions based on feelings
Need harmony

Are adapiable

Are drawn to literature

Are drawn to nuriuring careers
Get involved in causes

Are committed to ideals

Bring unity o society






Administration

s There are groups of words in horizontal lines across the page, lettered from Ato T.

o The administrator instructs students to rank the groups of words from 4 to 1, 4 being most like them
and 1 being ieast like them.

» After they have ranked each horizontal line of word groups, there is a scoring system provided.

o Agroup of letter is provided for each "true color." The test-taker will add up the numbers of the listed
letters {word groups} and the color with highest number is their "true color."

e There is then a list of "true color" characteristics that each color represents.

« If students get a tie, their "true color" will be a combination of the two.

Pricing & Availability

The True Colors Inventory is available in many different places at many different costs. True Colors
International offers a package for taking the test online and receiving personalized results for $34.95. This site
also offers training for individuals and groups, workshops on several topics, and the option to become a
Master Trainer. The inventory is also available in print form on several websites, such as the one listed below.
The inventory is readily available and can be found in many different formats.

True Colors International

https://truecolorsintl.com/assessments/online/

Reliability Validity
o highly reliable with a test-retest coefficient » significant content validity after comparison
of 0.94 with MBTI and DiSC

o significant construct validity







LA GRANDE SCHOOL. DISTRICT #1

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

BOARD/SUPERINTENDENT RETREAT (DAY 1)
July 14, 2017, 3:30 p.m., E.O.U, Inlow Hatl

NOTE: The meeting iocation is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the
meeting o Gaye Young at (541) 663-3202.

2.0

3.0

RESPONSIBILITY

CALL TO ORDER: Board Chairman

1.1 Pledge of Ailegiance
1.2 Roli Cali
1.3 Review of Agenda

PUBLIC FORUM (limited to 30 minutes)

Individual comments limited to three minutes. If more time is required, please submit comments or questions in writing. At this time, members
of the public are invited to present concerns to the Board. The chairman may allow input after board motions are made and seconded,
Speakers may offer objective criticism of school operations and programs, but the Board will not hear complaints congerning individual school
personnel. The chairman will direct complainis to the appropriate means for Board consideration and disposition of legitimate complainis
invalving individuals.

BOARD RETREAT
3:30-4:30 p.m.- Welcome and review of learning objectives and retreat schedule.
Introduction activity (True Colors survey & Barrier Breaking Reflection)

4:30-5:30 p.m.- Discussion and Reflection with George Murdock
5:30-6:00 p.m.~ Dinner

6:00-7:00 p.m.- Discussion and Reflection with George Murdock (cont.)






LA GRANDE SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

BOARD/SUPERINTENDENT RETREAT (DAY 2)
July 15, 2017, 8:00 a.m., E.0.U, Inlow Hall

NOTE: The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the
meeling to Gaye Young at {541) 663-3202.

2.0

3.0

RESPONSIBILITY
CALL TO ORDER: Board Chairman

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance
1.2 Rolt Call
1.3 Review of Agenda

PUBLIC FORUM (limited to 30 minutes)

Individual comments limited to three minutes. If more time is required, please submit comments or questions in writing. At this time, members
of the public are invited to present concerns to the Board. The chairman may allow input after board motions are made and seconded.
Speakers may offer objective criticism of school operations and programs, but the Board will not hear complaints conceming individual school
personnel. The chairman will direct complaints to the appropriate means for Board consideration and disposition of legitimate complaints
involving individuals.

BOARD RETREAT
8:00-8:30 a.m.- Breakfast

8:30-9:30 a.m.- Characteristics of Effective School Boards activity and discussion/
What is my role on the Board/How Do we operate.

9:30-11:30 a.m.~ Develop Superintendent/Board operating norms and agreements.
{chapter 2 read-ahead- Review examples)

11:30 2a.m.-12:30 p.m.- Lunch
12:30-2:00 p.m.- Superintendent’s entry plan review and discuss focus; expectations;
evaluation process, performance targets & deliverables for next year; discuss strategic

plan concept.

2:00-3:00 p.m.- Retreat review and next-step.






